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Overview: Standard-setting Projects

Publish 

Exposure 

Draft

IFRS 

Accounting 

Standard

Disclosure Initiative─

Targeted Standards-level 

Review of Disclosures

Disclosure Initiative─

Subsidiaries without Public 

Accountability: Disclosures

Primary Financial 

Statements

Rate-regulated 

Activities

Management Commentary

Financial Instruments 

with Characteristics of 

Equity

Review of the IFRS for 

SMEs Standard

Decide 

project 

direction

1

2

4

6

5

7

8

Amendments to 

the Standard

Other

Discuss 

feedback on 

Exposure Draft

Dynamic Risk 

Management

3
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Review of the IFRS for SMEs Accounting Standard

Approach

1

Project 

update

The IASB has completed its main 

deliberations considering feedback on 

the 2021 Request for Information and 

will begin balloting the Exposure Draft

Publish Exposure Draft in Q3 2022Next Steps

Objective

Update the IFRS for SMEs Accounting 

Standard for requirements in IFRS 

Accounting Standards within scope of 

this review following IASB’s alignment 

approach

Proposal 

to align the 

SMEs 

Standard

Proposal 

not to 

align the 

SMEs 

Standard

The Conceptual Framework

IFRS 3

IFRS 13

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 14

What is it about?

Some proposals during this review:
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Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Equity2

Clarify IAS 

32 

classification 

principles to 

address 

practice 

issues 

Provide 

classification 

guidance 

and 

illustrative 

examples

Improve 

presentation 

and 

disclosure

Project 

update

The has IASB made tentative decisions on 

classification for the following practice issues:

✓ financial instruments with contingent 

settlement provisions 

✓ the effects of applicable laws on 

contractual terms

✓ financial instruments where settlement of 

the contractual obligation is at the 

discretion of the issuer’s shareholders

✓ Reclassification of issued financial 

instruments 

Discuss remaining topics in FICE project plan 

with the aim to publish an Exposure Draft of 

amendments to IAS 32.

Next Steps

Objective

Improve the information companies provide in 

their financial statements about issued 

financial instruments and address challenges 

with applying IAS 32

What is it about?

A

B

C
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Project 

update

What is it about?

✓ The DRM project is moved from the 

research programme to the 

standard-setting programme

✓ No dedicated consultative group was 

formed  

The IASB identified the topics to 

consider further as part of its 

development of the DRM model and 

will start the deliberation in Q4 2022.

Next Steps

Develop an accounting model to better 

reflect the effect of dynamic risk 

management in a company’s financial 

statements

Objective
The DRM Model

A DRM adjustment is recognised in the 

statement of financial position to represent the 

extent to which the designated derivatives

successfully mitigated the variability from the 

risk mitigation intention, and achieved the 

entity’s target profile.

Dynamic Risk Management (DRM)3
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Management Commentary4

Strong investor support for the 

project, as it addresses common 

shortcomings in reporting practice

Calls to work together with the 

ISSB

Feedback on Exposure Draft

General support for focus on 

information needs of 

investors and creditors

Main 

proposals in 

the Exposure 

Draft

Focus on information needs of investors and creditors

Disclosure objectives + supporting guidance

Would bring together in one report information about financial, sustainability

and other matters fundamental to entity’s long-term prospects

A

C

B
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Main features 

in the 

Exposure 

Draft

Sets out reduced disclosure requirements for eligible subsidiaries

A voluntary standard forming part of the IFRS Accounting Standards

Would reduce costs for preparers and maintain usefulness of the 

financial statements 

Feedback on Exposure Draft

A

B

C

Many comments 

on the proposed 

disclosure 

requirements
Many suggestions for a 

wider scope to allow 

more companies to apply 

the draft Standard

Support for the 

objective and 

finalisation of the 

draft Standard

Support for the approach 

to developing the 

disclosure requirements

5
Disclosure Initiative ─ Subsidiaries without 
Public Accountability: Disclosures
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Feedback on Exposure Draft

Main 

proposals in 

the Exposure 

Draft

New approach to drafting disclosure requirements that:

• requires entities to comply with disclosure objectives; and

• provides a list of items of information that are typically not mandatory

Replace disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 

and IAS 19 Employee Benefits applying the new approach

A

B

Support for the use of 

disclosure objectives

Costly to apply and difficult to 

operationalise and enforce

The proposed approach may

not solve the disclosure problem

Support for early engagement

with stakeholders

6
Disclosure Initiative ─ Targeted Standards-level 
Review of Disclosures
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Main Proposals Proposals deliberated…

Require disclosures about 

management performance measures

Require additional defined subtotals in 

the statement of profit or loss

Strengthen requirements for 

disaggregating information

Categories and required 

subtotals Some proposals for 

entities with specified 

main business activitiesAssociates and Joint 

Ventures

Scope and 

definition

Aspects of disclosure 

including tax and NCI

Disclosure 

in a single 

location

Roles of primary 

financial 

statements and 

notes

Aspects of 

presentation 

of operating 

expenses

Statement of Cash Flows

Principles of 

aggregation 

and 

disaggregation

Primary Financial Statements7
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Main Proposals

Require recognition of regulatory 

assets, regulatory liabilities, 

regulatory income and regulatory 

expense

Measure regulatory assets and 

regulatory liabilities using a cash-flow-

based measurement technique

Reflect compensation for goods or 

services supplied as part of a 

company’s reported financial 

performance for the period in which it 

supplies those goods or services 

Topics that 

respondents 

raised 

significant 

concerns

Topics that 

were 

generally 

well 

received 

Total allowed compensation

Summary of feedback

Scope

Discount rate (minimum interest rate)

Measurement (estimating future cash 

flows)

Items affecting regulated rates only 

when cash is paid or received

Interaction with other IFRS 

Accounting Standards

Presentation and Disclosure

Recognition, unit of account and 

derecognition

Rate-regulated Activities8



Post-Implementation 
Reviews
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Overview: Post-Implementation Review (PIR)

Completed PIRs

Ongoing PIRs

Upcoming PIRs

PIR of IFRS 15

PIR of IFRS 16

PIR of IFRS 9 (ECL 

and hedging)

PIR of IFRS 9 

(Classification and 

Measurement)

PIR of IFRS 10,11 and 

12

What is on our work plan?

Possible Outcomes

Approach

Objective

What is it about?



Research Projects
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Early 

stage of 

research 

phase

Decide 

project 

direction

Later 

stage of 

research 

phase

1 2 43

Overview: Research Projects

Equity Method

Business Combinations under Common Control

Goodwill and Impairment

Extractive Activities

1

2

3

4
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The Approach

Project 

update

The IASB discussed the approach to 

address changes in an investor’s 

interest while retaining significant 

influence

Continue to discuss other application 

questions identified within the scope of 

the project

Next Steps

Assess whether application questions 

with the equity method as set out in IAS 

28 can be addressed by identifying and 

explaining the principles of IAS 28

Objective

What is it about?

Address 
application 
questions

Identify 
principles  
underlying 

IAS 28

Identify 
application 
questions

Equity Method1
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Project 

update

The IASB is exploring: 

✓ developing requirements or 

guidance to improve a company’s 

disclosures about its exploration and 

evaluation expenditure and activities

✓ removing the temporary status of 

IFRS 6

Discuss research findings Next Steps

Provide more useful information about 

exploration and evaluation expenditure 

and activities accounted for applying 

IFRS 6

Objective

What is it about?

Ongoing research 
to understand

User’s information 
needs

Why users do not 
currently get that 

information

Costs of requiring 
entities to provide 
that information

Extractive Activities2



19

What is it about?

P

C

Entity P has 

common control 

Entity C is a businessC

Entity A is the 

receiving entity

Acquisition method or book-value method

Project 

update

IASB decided not to expand the project 

scope in March 2022. 

Deliberate the selection of the 

measurement method(s)
Next Steps

Objective

Develop reporting requirements to 

reduce diversity in practice and improve 

transparency

B A

Business Combinations under Common Control3
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Whether and how to proceed with its preliminary views to require 

companies to disclose information about the subsequent 

performance of business combinations and quantitative information 

about expected synergies. The IASB discussed some possible 

ways forward at its meeting in April 2022. 

Whether to proceed with its preliminary view to retain the 

impairment-only model to account for goodwill

Next Steps

Improving the 

accounting for 

goodwill

Improving the 

disclosures 

about 

acquisitions

The IASB will decide on the following topics after consideration of the staff’s additional research. 

Objective

Improve information companies provide 

about their acquisitions at a reasonable 

cost

The IASB discussed the 

feedback on additional outreach 

activities on its preliminary views 

in April and May 2022

Project 

Update

Goodwill and Impairment4



Third Agenda Consultation
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22Strategic direction and balance of the IASB’s activities

More focus

Leave unchanged

After considering cross-cutting themes, such as implications of connectivity with the 

International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB), and consistent with stakeholders’ 

feedback, the IASB decided: 

• to begin no new activities within the current scope of its work; and

• to leave its current level of focus on its main activities largely unchanged.

Activity
Current level of 

focus
IASB’s decision

New Accounting Standards and major amendments 40%–45% Slightly decrease

Maintenance and consistent application 15%–20% Leave unchanged

The IFRS for SMEs Accounting Standard 5% Leave unchanged

Digital financial reporting 5% Slightly increase

Understandability and accessibility of Accounting 

Standards
5%

Slightly increase 

(indirect support of maintenance and consistent 

application)

Stakeholder engagement 20%–25% Leave unchanged
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Climate-related risks—this project will investigate accounting matters raised by respondents 

on this topic to decide if any narrow-scope amendments to Accounting Standards are needed 

Pollutant pricing mechanisms

Operating segments

Research 

project

pipeline

Maintenance

project 

pipeline

Reserve list 

(only if 

additional 

capacity 

becomes 

available)

New projects to add to IASB’s work plan for 2022 to 2026

Intangible assets—this project will aim to comprehensively review IAS 38 Intangible Assets

Statement of cash flows—IASB will consider initially whether the project should aim to 

comprehensively review IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows or make targeted improvements



Working with the ISSB
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25Two proposed IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards 

General Requirements 

Exposure Draft

Climate 

Exposure Draft
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Achieving compatibility between IFRS Accounting Standards 
& IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards

Investors 

and other capital 

market participants

Financial

statements

Sustainability

disclosures

International Accounting 

Standards Board

(IASB) 

International 

Sustainability 

Standards Board

(ISSB) 

IFRS 

Accounting 

Standards

IFRS 

Sustainability 

Disclosure 

Standards

• Integrated Reporting Council to advise IASB and ISSB on connectivity via 

fundamental concepts / guiding principles of integrated reporting

• IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards compatible with IFRS Accounting 

Standards or other GAAP to meet investor needs
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A misperception about IFRS Accounting Standards

The words 

“climate change”

do not 

appear in IFRS 

Accounting Standards

IFRS Accounting 

Standards 

do address

climate-related matters

yet

IFRS Standards are principle-based because
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A reminder on IFRS educational material

Companies must consider 

climate-related matters in 

applying IFRS Standards 

when the effect of those 

matters is material in the 

context of the financial 

statements as a whole

2019 2020



Deep Dive: Primary 
Financial Statements

Targeted outreach topics
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Project overview

Exposure Draft 

published

Consultation 

period

Discussion of 

feedback summary

Q4 2019 Q1–Q3 2020 Q4 2020

• Improve communication 

in financial statements

• Focus on information 

included in the statement 

of profit or loss

Objective
Require additional defined subtotals in statement of profit or loss

Require disclosures about management performance measures

Strengthen requirements for disaggregating information







Main proposals

IASB 

redeliberations

2021–2023 
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Subtotals in the statement of profit or loss—change in approach for classifying income 

and expenses within the financing category

Key targeted outreach topics

Management performance measures—rebuttable presumption

Disclosure of operating expenses



Subtotals- change in 
financing category
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33What are the new subtotals and categories?
Revenue

Operating

Other income

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Raw materials used

Employee benefits

Depreciation

Amortisation

Professional fees and other expenses

Operating profit

Income and expenses from associates and joint ventures 
Investing

Income and expenses from investments, including cash and cash equivalents

Profit before financing and income tax

Income and expenses from liabilities that arise from transactions that involve 

only raising of financing Financing
Specified income and expenses on other liabilities

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year
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Financing category proposed in the Exposure Draft

The Exposure Draft proposed that the financing category include:

• Income and expenses on liabilities from ‘financing activities’—receipt or use of a resource 

from a provider of finance with the expectation the resource will be returned and the provider 

of finance compensated through payment of a finance charge dependent on amount of 

credit and duration; and

• interest expenses on other liabilities 

Respondents raised application questions over the definition of ‘financing activities’ such as:

• Who qualifies as a provider of financing?

• Does the resource returned need to be the same as the resource received?

• What compensation qualifies as a finance charge? 

The IASB changed the approach to classifying income and expenses in the financing category 

to make the proposals easier to apply

The new approach is not expected to result in a change in the income and expenses that 

would be classified in the financing category 
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35Revised proposal for the financing category

A transaction that involves:

• the receipt by the entity of cash, an entity’s 

own equity instruments or a reduction in a 

financial liability; and

• the return by the entity of cash or an entity’s 

own equity instruments

For other liabilities, including lease liabilities, 

classify interest expense and the effect of 

changes in interest rates in the financing 

category when such amounts are identified 

applying the requirements of IFRS 

Accounting Standards (eg IAS 19 or IAS 37)

Specified income and expenses 

from other liabilities 

All income and expenses from liabilities that 

involve only the raising of finance

Facilitates an analysis of an entity’s performance independently of how the entity is financed

eg typical loan contract involves the receipt of 

cash and return of cash

eg lease liability involves receipt of right-of-

use asset and return of cash
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36Questions for targeted outreach

1. Is the revised proposal for classifying income and expenses within 

the financing category clearer and easier to apply than the 

proposal in the Exposure Daft?

2. Would the revised proposal for classifying income and expenses 

in the financing category result in a change in which income and 

expenses would be classified in the financing category applying 

the proposals in the Exposure Draft? If so, what do you expect 

would change?



Management 
performance 

measures

Rebuttable presumption and tax and NCI dislcosure
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Management performance measures definition in the 
Exposure Draft

The Exposure Draft defined management performance measures as subtotals of income and 

expenses that:

• Are used in public communications outside financial statements;

• Complement totals or subtotals specified by IFRS Accounting Standards; and

• Communicate to users management’s view of an aspect of an entity’s financial performance

The IASB tentatively decided to establish a rebuttable presumption that a subtotal of income 

and expense included in public communications outside financial statements represents 

management’s view of an aspect of the entity’s financial performance 

The rebuttable presumption could be rebutted with reasonable and supportable evidence that a 

subtotal does not represent management’s view of an aspect of financial performance

Some respondents said management’s 

view may be too subjective to capture 

all measures intended 

Other respondents were concerned that 

not all measures communicated in 

public represent management’s view 

e.g. a subtotal required by local GAAP
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Subtotals of income and expenses not specified by IFRS Accounting Standards that:

How will MPMs be defined?

are used in public communications 

outside financial statements 

(excluding oral communications, 

transcripts and social media posts)

communicate management’s view 

of an aspect of an entity’s financial 

performance

Rebuttable presumption that a subtotal used in public communications represents 

management’s view of an aspect of an entity’s financial performance – rebutted with 

reasonable and supportable evidence
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40How would rebuttable presumption work?

• A subtotal of income and expenses published outside the financial 

statements would be assumed to be a management performance 

measure disclosed in the financial statements (unless the presumption 

were rebutted)

• The rebuttable presumption assumes that if an entity publishes a subtotal 

of income and expenses outside of financial statements, it does so to 

communicate management’s view of an aspect of the entity’s financial 

performance

• To rebut the presumption there must be reasonable and supportable 

evidence to explain why the subtotal was published even though it does 

not represent management’s view

• For example, the entity may be required by a regulator to publish a 

subtotal that does not reflect management’s view
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41Rebuttable presumption - questions for outreach

1. Do you think that establishing the rebuttable presumption will 

reduce subjectivity over what represents management’s view, 

without requiring measures that do not represent management’s 

view to be management performance measures?

2. If not, what alternative approach would you suggest and why?
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Management performance measures—tax and NCI

The Exposure Draft defined proposed and entity be required to reconcile each management 

performance measure to the most directly comparable subtotal or total specified in IFRS 

Accounting Standard

It also proposed an entity be required to disclose the tax effect and the effect of non-controlling 

interest for each item disclosed in the reconciliation

The IASB tentatively decided to revise the requirement specifying how to calculate the income 

tax effect.

The revised requirement is intended to reduce the complexity of calculating tax on individual 

items by introducing a simplified calculation. The simplified calculation is intended to respond to 

user feedback that high-level information on tax effects would meet their needs 

Some respondents (mainly preparers 

said calculating tax on individual line 

items may be complex and costly 

Other respondents (mainly users) said 

information about tax effects on 

reconciling item is important to 

understanding adjusted measures
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Revised requirement to disclose tax effects of 
items in MPM reconciliation 

Calculate the tax effects of the underlying 

transaction(s) at the statutory rate(s) 

applicable to the transaction(s) in the 

relevant jurisdiction(s)

Calculate the tax effects using the simplified 

method and allocate any other tax effects 

related to the underlying transaction(s) 

based on a reasonable pro rata allocation of 

the current and deferred tax of the entity in 

the jurisdictions concerned, or another 

method that achieves a more appropriate 

allocation

Simplified method AND an 

allocation of other tax effects
Simplified method

Provides information about the tax specific to 

the transactions in the jurisdictions only

Allows for allocation of full tax effects to 

reconciling items

An entity shall calculate the income tax effect of reconciling items by either:
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44Question for targeted outreach?

1. Does the IASB’s tentative decision to revise the method used to 

calculate the tax effect of individual reconciling items in slide 43 

provide a better balance of costs and benefits than the proposal in 

the Exposure Draft?



Disclosure of operating 
expenses
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Disclosure of operating expenses by nature

ED proposed that an entity that reports expenses by function in the statement of financial 

performance to disclose in the notes an analysis of its total operating expenses by nature

Some respondents (users, standard-

setters and accountancy bodies) agreed

Some respondents (preparers and their 

representative bodies) disagreed saying 

the proposals would be too costly

• IASB exploring whether a more balanced outcome between costs for preparers and 

benefits for users could be achieved by requiring entities to disclose, for specified 

expense items, the amounts included in each line item(s) in the statement(s) of financial 

performance

• Specified expense items, at a minimum, would include depreciation, amortisation, and 

employee benefits, but also exploring whether additional expense items could be 

included based on the incremental costs to preparers and incremental benefits to users
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Comparison of Exposure Draft and possible revised 
proposal

Exposure Draft proposal 202X1

Changes in inventories of finished 

goods and work in progress
200

Raw material used (400)

Reversal of inventory write-downs 50

Depreciation (500)

Employee benefits (400)

Amortisation (100)

Impairment of property, plant and 

equipment
(100)

Impairment losses on trade 

receivables
(100)

Property taxes (25)

Litigation expenses (100)

Gains (losses) on derivatives (25)

Other miscellaneous expenses (100)

Operating expenses total (1600)

Statement of profit or loss 202X1

Revenue 3000

Cost of goods sold (600)

Gross profit 2400

Other income 500

Selling expenses (400)

Research and development 

expenses
(300)

General and administrative 

expenses
(200)

Impairment losses on trade 

receivables
(100)

Operating profit (loss) 1900

1 Comparative reporting period not depicted in example for simplification purposes
2 Additional specified nature expenses may be required in the final proposal.
.

Possible revised proposal - specified 

nature expense items in functions 

presented2

202X1

Depreciation (500)

Cost of goods sold (250)

Selling expenses (150)

Research and development expenses (50)

General and administrative expenses (50)

Employee benefits (400)

Cost of goods sold (200)

Selling expenses (100)

Research and development expenses (50)

General and administrative expenses (50)
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48Questions for targeted outreach

1. Does the possible approach to disclose the amounts of depreciation, 

amortisation and employee benefits included in each line item in the 

statement of profit or loss provide a better balance of costs and benefits 

than the proposal in the Exposure Draft?

2. Would the possible approach, if applied to all other operating expenses

disclosed in the notes, subject to undue cost constraint*, provide a similar 

balance between costs and benefits?

* Entities would not be required to provide disclosure for other operating expenses if this would give rise to 

undue costs
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